

**ORDER OF THE OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER OF INSURANCE AMENDING, REPEALING  
AND CREATING RULES**

To amend Ins 13.03 (3) & 13.05 (6), repeal Ins 13.06 (a) and renumber Ins 13.06 (b) & (c), amend Ins 13.06 (4), repeal Ins 13.06 (5) and renumber Ins 13.06 (6), repeal Ins 13.08 (3) (d) & (e), repeal and recreate Ins 13.09, amend Ins 50.02 (3) and repeal Ins 50.02 (e) & (f), Wis. Adm. Code, relating to town mutual insurance.

---

**ANALYSIS PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER OF INSURANCE**

Statutory authority: ss. 601.41(3), 601.42, Chapter 612 & 623.11 Stats.

Statutes interpreted: ss. Chapter 612 Stats.

Analysis: The changes to Chapter Ins 13 reflect both recent statutory changes to the operation of town mutuals and today's economic realities. This rule increases the number of counties in which a town mutual may do business, extends the fidelity bond requirement table, increases surplus requirements and eliminates obsolete sections on unearned premium reserves.

The change to Chapter Ins 50 conforms to the Ins 13 changes and broadens the exemption from filing annual audited financials for some town mutuals.

---

**SECTION 1. Section Ins 13.03 (3) is amended to read:**

Ins 13.03 (3) MODEL ARTICLES. Town mutual insurers may adopt articles of incorporation with provisions as follows:

**ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION**

Article I. The name of this corporation is \_\_\_\_ Insurance Company, and the principal office for the transaction of business is located at \_\_\_\_, county of \_\_\_\_, (or: at the residence or the business office of the \_\_\_\_ (a specified officer of the company)) state of Wisconsin.

Article II. (1) The business of the corporation is:

(a) Fire and extended coverage insurance, including (excluding) windstorm and hail;

(b) Other property insurance customarily provided with fire insurance, to the extent authorized by statute or rule;

(c) Non-property insurance customarily provided with fire and extended coverage insurance to the extent authorized by statute or rule.

(2) The corporation may insure any property located within the territory specified in the articles, but not elsewhere except as authorized by statute.

(3) The corporation may do business in all of the towns, villages and cities within the county(ies) \_\_\_ of (not more than ~~4~~ 8 unless specifically authorized by the commissioner or unless the articles result from a merger in which case the maximum is ~~8~~ 16), but not elsewhere except as authorized by statute.

Article III. The corporation shall be managed by a board of directors consisting of \_\_\_ (not less than 5) members divided into 3 classes. One class shall be elected at each annual meeting for a term of 3 years. The directors shall have such rights, powers and duties as are prescribed by statute, these articles, or the bylaws. Vacancies in the board may be filled by the directors for the interim to the next annual meeting. At that time, a director shall be chosen for the unexpired term. Directors may be removed from office for cause by an affirmative vote of a majority of the full board at a meeting of the board called for that purpose.

Article IV. The officers of the corporation shall consist of a president, vice president, secretary and treasurer. These officers shall be chosen by the board of directors from among its members immediately after the annual meeting of the corporation and they shall hold office for one year or until their successors are duly elected and qualified, or until removed by the board, which may remove them without cause subject to any contract rights to compensation.

Article V. The annual meeting of the corporation for the election of directors and such other business as may properly come before the meeting shall be held in \_\_\_\_ Wisconsin, on the \_\_\_\_ in \_\_\_\_ of each year at \_\_\_\_ o'clock \_ M., or at such other time and place within the corporation's territorial limits as may be determined by the board provided they shall give notice thereof by mail to all members at least 10 days prior to the date set by this article for the meeting and at least 30 days prior to the new date of the meeting. Special meetings of the corporation may be called by the board, (and shall be called by the president or secretary upon the written petition of 25 members) provided at least 30 days' notice thereof, reciting the proposed business to be taken up, shall be given by mail to each member. At all meetings of the corporation, 10 members shall constitute a quorum and each member shall have one vote. No member shall vote by proxy.

Article VI. These articles may be amended at any annual or duly called and noticed special meeting by a resolution adopted by two-thirds of the votes cast on the question, subject to approval by the commissioner under s. 612.04 (2). Dissolution of the corporation may be effected by a resolution under ss. 612.12 (2) and 612.25.

Article VII. The members of the board, by a majority of the votes cast on the question, may make and amend bylaws not inconsistent with the statutes, these articles or with the provisions or conditions of any existing policy. Any bylaw made or amended by the board shall be subject to repeal or amendment by the members by a majority of the votes cast on the question at an annual or special meeting.

Article VIII. Any assessment shall be levied in accordance with s. 612.54 (1) through (3). Notice of any assessment shall be subject to s. 612.54 (4). Consequences of default and failure to pay an assessment shall be as specified in s. 612.54 (5).

**SECTION 2. Section Ins 13.05 (6) is amended to read:**

Ins 13.05 (6) FIDELITY BOND REQUIREMENTS. All insurers subject to this rule shall procure and maintain in force a fidelity bond or honesty insurance as a guaranty against financial loss caused by employee dishonesty. The bond shall cover all

fraudulent or dishonest acts, including larceny, theft, embezzlement, forgery, misappropriation, wrongful abstraction or willful application, committed by employees acting alone or in collusion. The bond shall cover all officers, directors and employees having direct access to the company's assets and with responsibility for the handling and processing of income of the company and disbursements of the company. A blanket bond covering all officers, directors and employees satisfies this requirement. The minimum amount of the bond shall be determined on the basis of total admitted assets, plus gross income of the company as set forth in the following schedule:

Total Admitted Assets Plus Gross		Minimum Amount of
	Income	Bond
		\$
0-	\$ 500,000	\$ 20,000
500,001-	1,000,000	35,000
1,000,001-	1,500,000	50,000
1,500,001-	2,000,000	65,000
2,000,001-	2,500,000	80,000
2,500,001-	3,000,000	95,000
3,000,001-	3,500,000	110,000
3,500,001-	4,000,000	125,000
4,000,001-	4,500,000	140,000
4,500,001-	5,000,000	155,000
<u>5,000,001-</u>	<u>5,500,000</u>	<u>170,000</u>
<u>5,500,001-</u>	<u>6,000,000</u>	<u>185,000</u>
<u>6,000,001-</u>	<u>6,500,000</u>	<u>200,000</u>
<u>6,500,001-</u>	<u>7,000,000</u>	<u>215,000</u>
<u>7,000,001-</u>	<u>7,500,000</u>	<u>230,000</u>
<u>7,500,001-</u>	<u>8,000,000</u>	<u>245,000</u>
<u>8,000,001-</u>	<u>8,500,000</u>	<u>260,000</u>

<u>8,500,001-</u>	<u>9,000,000</u>	<u>275,000</u>
<u>9,000,001-</u>	<u>9,500,000</u>	<u>290,000</u>
<u>9,500,001-</u>	<u>10,000,000</u>	<u>305,000</u>

History: Cr. Register, August, 1974, No. 224, eff. 9-1-74; reprinted to correct error, Register, March, 1980, No. 291; am. (3)(e), Register, April, 1982, No. 316, eff. 5-1-82; am. (3)(a) to (f), (4) and (6), Register, July, 1991, No. 427, eff. 8-1-91.

**SECTION 3. Section Ins 13.06 (3) (a) is repealed.**

**SECTION 4. Ins 13.06 (3) (b) and (c) are renumbered Ins 13.06 (3) (a) and (b).**

**SECTION 5. Section Ins 13.06 (4) is amended to read:**

Ins 13.06 (4) ~~PROPERTY INSURANCE- SURPLUS REQUIREMENTS~~. ~~Any~~ A town mutual insurer ~~that writes property insurance~~ shall maintain a surplus of the greater of ~~\$50,000~~ \$200,000 or 20% of the net written premiums and assessments in the 12-month period ending on or not more than 60 days before the date as of which the calculation is made. Every town mutual shall achieve and maintain this minimum surplus by December 31, ~~1987~~ 2001.

**SECTION 6. Ins 13.06 (5) is repealed.**

**SECTION 7. Ins 13.06 (6) is renumbered Ins 13.06 (5).**

**SECTION 8. Section Ins 13.08 (3) (d) and (e) are repealed:**

**SECTION 9. Section Ins 13.09 is repealed and recreated to read:**

**Ins. 13.09 Reinsurance.** (1) **PURPOSE.** This rule implements and interprets s. 612.33, Stats., for the purpose of setting rules or guidelines for permitted and prohibited reinsurance and required reinsurance.

(2) **SCOPE.** This rule shall apply to all town mutual insurers subject to ch. 612, Stats.

(3) **DEFINITIONS.** For the purposes of this section only:

(a) "Maximum attachment point" means the amount of losses, expressed as a percentage of net premiums written, which constitutes the limit of the town mutual's retention under the aggregate excess of loss reinsurance required by sub. (4).

(b) "Net premiums written" means gross premiums written less premiums ceded for reinsurance inuring to the benefit of an aggregate excess of loss reinsurance contract. Reinsurance premiums ceded for aggregate excess of loss reinsurance, reinsurance premiums paid or recovered related to coverage for other years, and dividends paid to policyholders shall not be considered in determining net premiums written.

(4) **REQUIRED REINSURANCE.**

(a) **Aggregate excess of loss reinsurance.** Every town mutual shall obtain and continuously maintain unlimited aggregate excess of loss reinsurance for all risks covered by property and nonproperty insurance that is not otherwise ceded under another reinsurance contract. The aggregate excess of loss reinsurance shall provide a maximum attachment point expressed as a percentage of net premiums written, which is based on the relationship of the town mutual's prior year-end surplus to prior year-end gross premiums written, as set forth in the following schedule:

1. Ratio that results from the division of prior year-end surplus by prior year-end gross premiums written	Maximum attachment point expressed as a percentage of net premiums written during the calendar year of coverage
300% or higher	150%
101% to 299%	100%
100% or less	75%

2. For purposes of this section 13.09, all calculations shall be based on the final annual statement filed with the commissioner.

3. The aggregate excess of loss reinsurance contract shall warrant by specific reference that it complies with this section.

4. Any town mutual that fails to comply, or has reason to believe that it is in imminent risk of failure to comply, with this section after its effective date shall notify the commissioner within 5 days of such failure or awareness.

(b) Reinsurance of nonproperty insurance. Any town mutual which provides nonproperty insurance coverage shall obtain reinsurance as required by s. 612.33(2)(b), Stats.

**SECTION 10. Section Ins 50.02 (3) (intro.) and (a) to (d) are amended to read:**

Ins 50.02 (3) An insurer licensed under ch. 612, Stats., if the insurer meets all of the following requirements:

(a) Has direct total written premium for the calendar year, including premiums on nonproperty coverage, of less than ~~\$300,000;~~ \$500,000.

(b) Has a net of reinsurance premium to policyholder surplus ratio of less than ~~6~~ 3 to 1 as of the December 31 of the year for which an audited financial report is otherwise required ~~;-.~~

(c) Is not authorized under its articles of incorporation to do business in more than ~~4~~ 8 counties ~~;-.~~

(d) Does not engage in the writing of nonproperty coverage unless the nonproperty coverage is ~~100%~~ 90% reinsured ~~;-.~~

**SECTION 11. Ins 50.02 (3) (e) and (f) and the note are repealed.**

**SECTION 12. Except as provided in SECTION 5 these changes will take effect on January 1, 2002, as provided in s. 227.22(2)(b), Stats.**

Dated at Madison, Wisconsin, this \_\_\_\_\_ day of April, 2001.

---

Connie L. O'Connell  
Commissioner of Insurance

**FISCAL ESTIMATE WORKSHEET**

**1999 Session**

Detailed Estimate of Annual Fiscal Effect  
DOA-2047 (R06/99)

LRB Number	Amendment No. if Applicable
Bill Number	Administrative Rule Number <b>Ins 13 &amp; Ins 50</b>

ORIGINAL       UPDATED  
 CORRECTED       SUPPLEMENTAL

Subject

**CHANGING FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS FOR TOWN MUTUAL INSURERS**

I. One-time Costs or Revenue Impacts for State and/or Local Government (do not include in annualized fiscal effect):

0

II. Annualized Costs:0	Annualized Fiscal impact on State funds from:	
	Increased Costs	Decreased Costs
<b>A. State Costs by Category</b>		
State Operations - Salaries and Fringes	\$ 0	\$ - 0
(FTE Position Changes)	( FTE)	(- FTE)
State Operations - Other Costs		-
Local Assistance		-
Aids to Individuals or Organizations		-
<b>TOTAL State Costs by Category</b>	<b>\$ 0</b>	<b>\$ - 0</b>
<b>B. State Costs by Source of Funds</b>	<b>Increased Costs</b>	<b>Decreased Costs</b>
GPR	\$ 0	\$ - 0
FED		-
PRO/PRS		-
SEG/SEG-S		-
<b>SECTION INS 13 &amp; 50, WIS. ADM. CODE, RELATING TO TOWN MUTUAL INSURANCE.</b>	<b>Increased Rev.</b>	<b>Decreased Rev.</b>
GPR Taxes	\$ 0	\$ - 0
GPR Earned		-
FED		-
PRO/PRS		-
SEG/SEG-S		-
<b>TOTAL State Revenues</b>	<b>\$ 0</b>	<b>\$ - 0</b>

**NET ANNUALIZED FISCAL IMPACT**

STATE

LOCAL

NET CHANGE IN COSTS      \$0 \_\_\_\_\_      \$0 \_\_\_\_\_

NET CHANGE IN REVENUES      \$0 \_\_\_\_\_      \$0 \_\_\_\_\_

Prepared by: <b>STEPHEN MUELLER</b>	Telephone No. <b>608-267-2833</b>	Agency <b>OCI</b>
Authorized Signature:	Telephone No.	Date

<b>1999 Session</b>		LRB Number
<b>FISCAL ESTIMATE</b> DOA-2048 N(R06/99)		Bill Number
x <input type="checkbox"/> ORIGINAL <input type="checkbox"/> UPDATED <input type="checkbox"/> CORRECTED <input type="checkbox"/> SUPPLEMENTAL		Amendment No. if Applicable
<b>Subject</b>		Administrative Rule Number
<b>CHANGING FINANCIAL AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS FOR TOWN MUTUAL INSURERS</b>		<b>Ins 13 &amp; Ins 50</b>
<b>Fiscal Effect</b>		
State: x <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> No State Fiscal Effect Check columns below only if bill makes a direct appropriation or affects a sum sufficient appropriation.		
<input type="checkbox"/> Increase Existing Appropriation <input type="checkbox"/> Increase Existing Revenues <input type="checkbox"/> Decrease Existing Appropriation <input type="checkbox"/> Decrease Existing Revenues <input type="checkbox"/> Create New Appropriation	<input type="checkbox"/> Increase Costs - May be possible to Absorb Within Agency's Budget <input type="checkbox"/> Yes <input type="checkbox"/> No  <input type="checkbox"/> Decrease Costs	
<b>Local:</b> x <input checked="" type="checkbox"/> No local government costs		
1. <input type="checkbox"/> Increase Costs <input type="checkbox"/> Permissive <input type="checkbox"/> Mandatory 2. <input type="checkbox"/> Decrease Costs <input type="checkbox"/> Permissive <input type="checkbox"/> Mandatory	3. <input type="checkbox"/> Increase Revenues <input type="checkbox"/> Permissive <input type="checkbox"/> Mandatory 4. <input type="checkbox"/> Decrease Revenues <input type="checkbox"/> Permissive <input type="checkbox"/> Mandatory	5. Types of Local Governmental Units Affected: <input type="checkbox"/> Towns <input type="checkbox"/> Villages <input type="checkbox"/> Cities <input type="checkbox"/> Counties <input type="checkbox"/> Others _____ <input type="checkbox"/> School Districts <input type="checkbox"/> WTCS Districts
<b>Fund Sources Affected</b>		<b>Affected Chapter 20 Appropriations</b>
<input type="checkbox"/> GPR <input type="checkbox"/> FED <input type="checkbox"/> PRO <input type="checkbox"/> PRS <input type="checkbox"/> SEG <input type="checkbox"/> SEG-S		
<b>Assumptions Used in Arriving at Fiscal Estimate</b>		
<b>Long-Range Fiscal Implications</b>		
Prepared by: STEPHEN MUELLER	Telephone No. 608-267-2833	Agency OCI
Authorized Signature:	Telephone No.	Date